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Pharn1acistLicense No. RPH 3 55 

Petitioner. 

Case No. I 7g 

OAI-J No. N2007040269 

DECISION 

This n1atter was heard before the California State Board of Pharulacy on April 19, 
2007, in Sacramento, California. Board members present and participating in the hearing 
\vere: \Villiam Powers, President; Dr. Ruth M. Conroy; D. Tin10thy Daze; Stanley 'N. 
Goldenberg; Robert (frau]: Dr. Clarence K. Hiura: Henry A. I-I . Dr. Susan LRavnan: 
~lIld Dr. Robert S\vart. Robert \Valker. Acln1inistrative L,a\v J State of California, 
o rfi ce 0 r Aelm i n istrati veIl eari presided. 

Joshua A. Room, Deputy Attorney General, appeared pursuant to Ciuvernrnent 
section 1 ] 5 

The petitioner,Hoi-Chi Cheung, appeared in propria persona. 

The rnatLer \vas subnliued on April] 9,2007. 

ISS 

Should petitioner's licate to pract icc pharmacy be rc instal eel? 



l'ACTUl\L FINDINCJS 

iLl ('XC;HOUIV1J 

1. On June 1 ]) 10~W, the State Board uf Pharmacy issued pharmacist license 
number RPH 353 to the petitioner. Hoi-Chi Cheung. 

2. On February 4. 2003, in the Superior Court of Calil'ornia for the County of San 
Bernardinu, petiti oner was con \' icteel () rvi olating Penal Coele section 487, felony granclthe fL 
and Penal Code secLion 50~. feluny embezzlement by an agent. The convictions \vere un 
plcilS oj' gLlj 11y. The court sentenced pditiuner l() I() lTlunths in prisun. 

3. Petiti oner' s con victi un resu lted i'nllll inc i dents that occurred behveen 
December or ]999 and January of 2002. Petitioner. \vhilc working at the Kaiser FouncluLiun 
Pharmacy in FuntaneL California, stole over 71 :000 tablets of Viagra, \vhich had a wholesale 
value in excess of $500,000. FIe also stole sn1a11 quantities of other drugs. Petitioner had 
developed a ganlbling habit and sold t11e stolen drugs to a co-conspirator to obtain for 
gambling. 

4. By an accusation dated June 23: 2003, Patricia F. I-Tarris, Executive Officer of 
the Board of Pharmacy, sought discipline against petitioner's license. Ms. Harris alleged 
petitioner's acts dishonesty, his possession of drugs \vithout a prescription. and the 
conviction. 

5. Petitioner and the board entered into a stipulation pursuant to \vhich petitioner 
adn1itted the allegations in the accusation and surrendered his 1icensc. a further 
stipulation, the parties that, as a condition prccedent to any petition for reinstatement 
of petitioner's license~ he is required to pay the board $8,298 in cost recovery. Thc stipulated 
seulcment and disciplinary order became effective on February 14.2004. 

(). By (J petition dated January 14.2007. petitioner petitioned the board I'or 
reinslaLcJ1lcnt or his license. That j')ctiLion is the subject ufthis proceedi 

7. Peti li oner s u bm iued an ve list cd' pharmaccutical articles he has read. 

8. Petitioner subnliLted eopics of cerljJicatcs for continuing education courses he 
cumpleted. In 2006, peLitioner completed 64 hours of board-approved continui 


ucation courses. 


9. Petitioner is very renl \Vhen \vas Jirst confrunted \vith what he had 
: he apol 10 representatives of . II e is rem 0 r s e fu I i'u r 111 c ]IaiII he his 



\\ ik unc! twu suns anclthellnuncial burdens he imposed on them. He has promiseclthal he 
will never hurt them again. He has pJeclgeclto them that he will \valk a and narrel\\ 
petth. 

10. Petitiuner was arrested in February 01'2002. 13et\veen 1\1arch of 2002 and 
April of 2003~ \vhen petitiuner was in1prisunecL he and his wife attended 19 meetings of 
ganlblers unonynlOUS. 

] ] . Petitioner n1ade full restitution to Kaiser. He paid $411,000 in cash and 
transferred property worth $] 10,000. }-le born)\ved a substantial part of the cash frOIT} hiends 
and members of his fan1ily.He has repaid all but approxinlately $45,000 of that and plans to 
repuy the ren1aining $45,000. 

)2. Petiti oner cooperated with Kaiser in Kaiser's ci vi 1sui1 against peti ti oner' s co­
conspira1oL and petitiuner's cooperation \vas helpful in enabling Kaiser 10 obtain a judgment 
agains1 the co-conspirator. Dennis 1-!o\vell is a senior investigator with Kaiser's national 
special investigations unit 1\lr. I-lowell wr01e a letter dated April) 7.2006, praising 
petitiuner for his cooperation. He wrote, .; \Vithoul 1\1r. Cheung' s assistance and forthright 
honesly~ this prosecution of Mr. Lee-Fong 1-10 would not have been possible." 

13. /\s noted above, the court sentenced petitioner to 16 n10nths in prison. He, 
however. obtained an early release and was required to serve only 13 n10nths. 

14. On IV[ay 2005, petitioner obtained an early discharge £1'0111 parole. 

]5. Petitioner declares that he has elin1inated gan1bling from his life. 

16. Tin10thy Fong, MD, /\,ssistant Chnical Professor of Psychiatry, University of 
California at Los Angeles, has treated petitioner since October of 2006. Dr. Fong 
research regarding addktion and treats patients who arc addicted to drugs or gambling. He is 
board certified in adult psychiatry and in addiction psychiatry. He has seven years of clinical 
experience working with pathological gamblers. Dr. Fong testi1jedthat petjtioner~s 
pathological addiction to galTlbling is in renlission. Dr. Fong sa\v petitioner in IVlarch of 
2007 (lnd ['ound no psychiatric disease or pathology. IIc is of Lhe opinion that i1 is unlikely 
thut petitioner will blc again. lIe bases his ()pinion~ in part, on petitioner's COLlr of 
not hli his rarnil), and sucial nel\vork. his recurd of compliance \vith conditions 
1hal h u v e be e n i III pose d on hi rn. :: IIId his g () () d ]Ie rru r m an c e in (l f'ull-l iIII e .i () b . Dr. j. a 1 so 
hases his upi 1'1 iun OJl the ract llwl peti 1i oncr gam bled for on I Y [I re Iati ve I y bri e rti mc two 
veal's. 

17. PetitiuJler continues to talk \vitll Dr. Fong three or four tinlcs a year. 

18. Since 1\,1a]'c11 of 2004~ petitioner emp] at Anlphastar 
Pharn1aceLiti cal s. Inc. ~ as C1 ehem ical rescarc11 coordinator for clinical tria1's. 

http:fan1ily.He
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19. Tunylvlarrs is an associ ale vice icltnt for clinical resc;:lrch at /\rnphasU:lr 
Pharmaceuticals Inc .. pelitioner's Ullplo} cr..Mr. rvlarrs \\'role Cl letter elated Novenlber 3. 
JO()(). \~/hen petitioner applied 1'01' ::1 jub in fVlarch of' 2()04. fvlr. [Vlans was reluctant tu hire 
him hec~luse ol'his !'cluny conviction. Amphaslar. hU\\'CveL did hirepetilionlT. and IVlr. 
rVlcllTS WTulc that petitioner has cl vast arnount or kno\vledge and has been a \'ery guod 
employee. 1\11'. [Vlarrs has cume to trusl petiliuner and recummencls thal his license he 
reinstated. 

20. Petitioner subnlittecl flve lellers frum licensed phanllClcis1S who \vere ::l\vare of 
pelili s conviction and license revocation. 

21. Frank Ayala, a licensed pharmacist wrote a letter dated September 30~ 2006. 
1\11'. Ayala has known peti1ioner for 20 years. They workecllogether for 10 . ]\11'. Ayala 
\\frote that he had adnlired peUtioner for his many good qualities and \vas when 
petitioner s10le hom Kaiser. Mr. Ayala and petitioner continue to friends. and 1\111'. 
is of' the opinion that petitioner ;;is truly renl0rseful and is ready to, once begin an 
outstanding career as a phanllacist." 

JJ John Cheung, a licensed pharmacist, \vrote a letter dated November 21, 2006. 
Petitioner and 1\11'. Cheung vlorked at Thrifty Drugs and a1 Kaiser. 1\1r. Cheung 

peti1ioner highly. He is of opinion that petitioner is cOlllpietely rehabilitated. 

Ueorge Clark, a licensee! pharmacist; \"'rote a letter dated 1\1 10,2006. 1\/1r. 
Clark has kno\vn petitioner 17 years. They worked together 12 years. 1\1r. ('lurk described 
petilioner as "efficient. hardworking, and conscientious." 1\11'. Clark \vas shocked to learn 
that petitioner had stolen drugs from lZaiser. 1\11'. Clark \vrote 1hat petitioner to be 
fully recovered." IV1r. Clark is of the opinion that petitioner ';would never again rnake the 
n1istakes he has nlade." 

Betty ")7 ang-l-iDu, (l Iicensecl phanllacist wrote a leUer dated October 2, 2006. 
IVls. \{ ang-Lau \vorked at Kaiser when petitioner was there but did not \\'ork "directly" \vith 
him. vvas (l\vare. however, that "hud a wonderful reputation as a phanl1acist.'· \Vhen 
1\1s. Y ,au learned of petitioner's bl' problern and theft she \vas stunned Clnd 
sclc1dened. 1\/ls. Y LeW wrute. ';J understand that JVlr. m ... a commitment 
to rehabiliLation.~· She wroLe that petitioner ;'is a dedicated pharmacist and an asset tu lhe 
pl1drmacy professi un.~· 

Phi IIi p f\/1 0)'. LI liph(llTn ue isl. wrote an Ull datecl leHer. f\/1 r. f\10y \,VUS 

petitiuner's supen'isur ,:\1 K(liser I'()r 14 years. f\/lr. f\1uy \\Tote that petitioner \vas dependable. 
harcl-\\ urki kllO\\'1 leo fle.\ible. dedi and "loLedly cumIn' 10 pru\'iding 
e.\ celie III p(J 1i e III car l' an cJ 1'::1 S1 pre s c rip t iun sen ice." lVI r. !\ij u y w r() te. .. Ike I Lhal 11 u i has 

rehdhiliLdlecl. lie 11clS leLlrIwcl (J \Ulll;lblc ~ll1d eost]y leSSUIl." 



sublTliLLed Eve letters horn people uther than licensed pharn1C1cists. 
The letters are dated hom Septernber 19 to December] 5; 2006. All five of these 
\\Titers were u ware of petitioner" s con viction and] revocation. 'Thev 

...' 

wTote. variousl 
"'"
v . 

_. 

that peti ti 011 er . well on the road to total recovery ~ ,. and that he is detern1 inecL dedi catecL 
consc ienti () us. kno\·v1edgeabl e. si ncere, and 

LEGAL CONCLUSJONS 

I. By reason urthl' maHers set forth in j"inclings C) through 26, it is deterrnined 
that pet it i on er hus rnClcle s ubstan 1ial progress tuward reh;.:\bil i tati on (md that it wuu] d nut he 

in~;l the puhlic interest to issue a probationary license. Petitioner is very remorseful. 
Bel ween [V] arch ur 2002 and April or 2003, he and his l'e attended 19 of blers 
anonymous. lIe made full restitution to Kaiser and cooperated with Kaiser in a civil slIit 
against his co-conspirator. Ill' obtained early release hom both prison and parole. Dr. 
is of the opinion that pe1itione(s gambling addiction is in ren1ission. Petitioner 
\vorking shortly after he \vas released hom prison, and his enl])l praises hirn highly. 
Finally, letters of recon1nlencialion are reassuring. 

'! By reason of the n1a11ers set forth in Findings 7 and 8) it is clelern1ined that 
petitioner satisfactorily n1aintained his knc)\vledge as a phan112lcist. 

" Petitioner~ s license should be reinstated subj ect to appropriate conditions of.J. 

probation. 

4. By reason of the ll1atters set forth in F"inding 5, it is detern1ined that the board 
is entitl ed to recover costs of $8,298. In Zuckennul1 v. SfClf e Bourd qj' C'h iropl'Clcf ic 

E.YUl77irlc!',)·, I a case in \vhich tIle State Board of Chiropractic Examiners had disciplined Ll 

license. the Supreme Court of Cali Cornia de(llt with the issue or cos1 recovery. The court helel 
that "the J)u~lrd must exercise its discretion to reduce or elirninate cost awards in Ll rn~.lnner 

th(.\t wi II ensure that ... Icost recoveryl does not deter chiropractors with potentially 
m eri turi (Jus c I ai 111S or defenses from exerci s' their right to Cl heari ng." The cuurt 
cstClhlishecl 11\'e rules that an agency must in assessi the amount to be 1n 
til is celse pl:~li Li oner agrl~cdto pay $8,298; and his agreement causes four of the court's ru Ies 
to be inapplicable here. One rule, ho\vevcL deals \vith Cl party's ability to make later 
payments and. thereforc~ is clpplicublc here. The court said, "Furthermore. as in cost 
recoupment schernes in which the government s to recover from crin1inal defendants the 
cust of their stelle-provided representation Icitation I the Board mLlst detennine tha1 the 
chiroJlrUcLur \,vill be J1nancially able to later paYIl1~nls."2 

lei ,1t p . ...j~. 



()RIJLIZ 

The pelition for reinstatenlent is granted. if pelitioner es all statutory and 
requirenlents for ur a . the board shall reinstate . license. The 

license shall immediately be revoked. 'J'he revocation shall stayed, however, for three 
and pet.itiuner shall be placed on probation on the following conditions: 

] . 	 Petitioner shall ubey all state and federal laws and regulatiuns substantially 
related to or governing the practice of pharmacy. Petitioner shall report any or 
the follovling occurrences to the boarcL in writing, \vithin 72 hours of such 
occurrence: an arrest or of a crinlinal conlplaint for violation of any 
provision of the Phannacy Lmv. state or federal food and laws, or stale or 
federal controlled substances la\vs; a plea of guilty or nolo conlendre in any 
stClte or federal crimin~ll proceeding to any crinlinal complaint. infornlation, or 
indictment; Cl conviction or any crime: discipline. citCltion, or other 
adnlinistrative action filed by any staLe or federal agency that involves 
petiti oner' s license or that is re 1aled to lhe practi Ce () rphclrm 0)' the 
manufacturing. obtaining. handling, distributing. billing for. or ror 
any drug, device, or controlled substance. 

') 	 Petitioner shall report to the boarcl quarterly. The report shall be nlade either 
in person or in \vriting, as directed. Petitioner shall state under penalty of 
peljury \\Thether there has been conlpliance \vith all the tenllS and conditions of 
probation. If the final probation report is not 111ade as directed, probati on shall 
be extended autOlllatically until such tinle as the final report is made and 
accepted by the board. 

3. 	 On receipt of reasonable notice~ petitioner shall appear in person Cor interviews 
\vith the board on request at various intervals at a location to be ckternlined by 
the board. Failure to appear for a scheduled inte1'vic\v without prior 
notificatioll to board stafr shall be considered a violation of probation. 

4. Petitioner shelll cooperate v/ith the board's inspectioll program and in the 
board's monitori and invest' on oJ' petitionCT1s compliDnce with the terms 
and conditions of'petitioner's prubation. Failure to cOll1ply shall be considered 
(l \ iu Iell jon () rpr () li Cl t ion. 

). Petitioner shall pruvide evidcnce uf' elTurts lu mainLlJin skill ,-md knowledge as 
(\ phurmacist as directed by the hoard. 

C)' 	 Petitiuner shall notify all present and prospective empluyers ofth1s decision 
and the condi ti()ns~ and reslrictions imposed on petitioner by this 
decision. \Vithin 30 of ve date of this . on. and \vilhin 15 

petitioner undertaking nc\v enlploynlenL petitioner shull cause 
petitioner's direct supervisor. pharmaci . and/or u\,,'ner to report 10 



the board in acknuwlt~dging that the empl has this decision. 
1r petitiuner for or is employed by or thruugh a pharmacy employment 
sen' ice. pclit i uner III uSl not i I) the cl i recl super\' i SOL pharnlaci sl- in-charge, 
Lmd/ur ()\vner elt every pharmacy or the terms and cunditions uj' this dec isiol1 in 
;"1 cl \ d 11 Ce () r pL' til i () nL~ r' s c U III men c i w u r kat e a c h ph (,\]' m ." LIT) P I u Y IT) erll" 
within thc lTlci.ming ul'this provision I include any l'ull-lirne. parl-lillle. 
temporary. relier. ur pharmacy management service as (J pharmacisL \.vhethel' 
petitioner is considered an employee or independent contractor. 

7. 	 Petitioner shall not supervise any intern phanllacist or perform any of the 
duties or a preceptor. Petitioner shall not be the pharnlacist-in-charge of any 
entity I' by the board unless oLhenvise specified in this order. 

8. 	 Petitiuner shall pay to the board its costs of investigation and prosecution in 
the amount of $8,298. If petitioner applies for pernlission to pay those costs in 
installnlents, the board~ as is required by Zuckermo17, must cletenll ine \vhether 
a payment schedule is necessary so thal petitioner \,,,ill be financially able to 
pay the board's costs. 

9. 	 Petitioner shall pay the costs associated 'with probation 111onitoring as 
de1ernlined by the board each year of probation. Such costs shall be payable 
to the board at the end of each year of probation. Failure to pay such costs 
shall be considered a violation of probation. 

10. 	 Petitioner shalL at all tilTles while on probation, nlaintain an uctive, current 
license \\'ith the board, including any period during \vhicll on or 
probation is tolled. Ifpetitioner's license expires or is cancel operation 
of lmv or otherwise, on renevv'al or reapplication~ petitioner's license shall 
subject to all tenns and conditions of this probation nol previously satisfied. 

]1. 	 Follo\ving the eJTective date of this decision, should petitioner cease practice 
due to retirement or health, or be othenv'ise unable to satisfy the terms and 
conditions of probation, petitioner m tender petitioner's license to the board 
I'ur surrender. The board shall have the discretion \A/hether to grant the request 
I'or surrender or take any other action it decnls appropriate and reasonahle. On 
furmal acceptance of the surrender of the license. petitioner will no ] be 
subject tu the terms and cundiLions uCprobation. On acceptance of the 
surrender. petiti uner sha II reI inqu ish ]Jeti ti oner' s pocket 1 iccnse to the board 
\\'1thin 10 days of notillcalion by the board that the surrender is accepLed. 
I)clitioner rl1D)' nol reapply for Dny license hum lluDrd ['or three years from 
Lhe cflective deJte or the surrender. I)elitiuner shell] rnee\ ull requirements 
(lPP I i cab k to the license suugh t as of the dute the u pp I i cal jUI1 ['()r thdt Ii ccnSt' is 
suhmilled to huurd. 
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12. 	 Petitioner shall noti fy the board in writing within 10 any of 
e1l1ploymenl. Sai d notiJi cati on shall inc lude the reasuns for I eavi ng and/or the 
address of the nc\v elDployer) supervisor, or owner and \vork schedule i r 
known. Petitioner shall notify the board in writing within 10 Or;J change 
in name. mailing address, or phone number. 

]3. 	 Should petitioner, regardless of residency, for any reason cease practlcl 
pharmacy for a nlininlum or 80 hOLlrs per calendar month in ifornia. 
peti ti oner must noli i'y the buard in wri ti ng \c\'ithin ]0 day sur on or the 
prclctice of pharmacy or the reSLllTlplion ur the practice oj' pharmacy. Such 
periods uftime shall not apply tu the reduction urthe prubation period. It is a 
\ i () I alion 0 rprobuli on fur peli ti oner's pro bati un to remain tulled pursuant to the 
provisions of this condition for a period exceeding three "Cessatiun or 
practice" means any period of time exceeding 30 clays in which pl:titiuner is 
not engaged in the practice of pharmacy as defined in Section 40 of the 
Business and Professions Code for at least 80 hOLlrs a cal endar nlonth. 

14. 	 If petitioncr violates probation in any respect the board~ after ving pellt10ner 
notice and an opportunity to be heard, n1ay revok_c probation and carry out the 
disciplinary order that v,,'as stayed. If a petition to revoke probation or an 
accusation is filed against petitioner during probation, the board shall have 
continuing jurisdiction, and the period of probation shall until the 
petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided. 

]5. 	 If petitioner has not conlplied \·\,ith any term or condition of probation, the 
board shall have continuing jurisdiction over petitioner. and probation shall 
autoJ11atically be extended until all terms and conditions led or 
the board has taken other action as deenlcd appropriate to treal failure to 
cumply as a violation or prUbClliorl. to terminate probatiDn, and tu impose the 
penalty that was stayed. 

](). 	 \~/itllin 30 clays (lj'the eJTectivc date orthis decision. petitiuner .l)hllil submit to 
the board, 1'01' iLs prior approvaL the name and qualiJicati ons of' Cl licensed 
nlcntal health practitioner of petitioner'S choice. \Vhen the board appruves the 
licensed nlental heDlth practi Liuner. petitiuner shall and conlin ue 
treatment \vith that therapist LInd at petitioner'S o\vn nse: unti I the board 
deems that no further psychutherapy is necessary. ]rpetitioneL for reason, 
ceases treatment) petitioner shall notifY the board immedi and, within 30 
clDys of ceasing treallTlenl. peLitioner shall submit the naille of a replacement 
psychotherapist ur licensed nlenlal health practitioner or petitioner'S choice to 
the board for its prior tllJproval. ThlTapy shall lie at least once a week unless 

determ i ned by the board. Petiti oner sha II prov i LherClpisl \\'ith 
a copy or lhe board's on and decision no later than the first therapy 
session. Petitioner shall take all steps to ensure that treati 
therapist subnlils wriLLen quarterly reports tC) the board C oncerni petitioner's 



fitness to practice, progress in treatn1ent, and such other inforI11ation as l11ay be 
required by the board. If the treating therapist finds that petitioner cannot 
practice safely or independently, the therapist shall notify the board 
in1n1ediately by telephone and follow up by vvritten letter within three \vorking 
days. T'he board n1ay require petitioner to undergo n1ental health evaluations 
by a board-appointed or board-approved licensed n1ental health practitioner. 

17. 	 Within 10 days of the effective date of this decision, petitioner shall identify a 
work site 1110nitor, for prior approval by the board, \\1ho shall be responsible 
for supervising petitioner during \\1orking hours. The n1011itor shall report to 
the board quarterly. If the n10nitor detern1ines at any tin1e that petitioner poses 
a risk of harn1 to the public or his en1ployer, the n10nito1' shall notify the board 
in1111ediately, either orally or in writing as directed. If petitioner changes 
en1ployn1ent, a new work site 1110nitor.n1Llst be designated, for prior approval 
by the board, \\1ithill 10 days of petitioner's con1111encing new e111ployn1ent. 

18. 	 On petitioner's successful c0111pletion of probation, the license \·vi11 be fully 
restored. 

DATED: May 31, 2007 

Effective Date: June 6, 2007 

WILLIAM POWERS 
President 
California State Board of Phar111acy 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

BARRY G. THORPE, State Bar No. 126422 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-5845 
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

HOI-CHI CHEUNG 

Respondent. 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 35355 

Case No. 2578 

OAH No. L-2003070785 

STIPULATED SURRENDER OF 
LICENSE AND ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties in this 

proceeding that the following matters are true: 

PARTIES 

1. Patricia F. Harris (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of 

Pharmacy (Board). She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in 

this matter by Bill Lockyer, Attorney General of the State of California, by Barry G. Thorpe, 

Deputy Attorney General. 

2. Hoi-Chi Cheung (Respondent) is represented in this proceeding by 

attorney Donald B. Brown, whose address is Law Offices of Donald B. Brown, 3848 Carson 

Street, Suite 206, Torrance, CA 90503. 

3. On or about June 11, 1980, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist 

License Number RPH 35355 to Hoi -Chi Cheung. The Pharmacist License was in full force and 

effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on October 31,2003, 

unless renewed. 
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4. On or about June 23, 2003, the Board automatically and summarily 

suspended Respondent's Pharmacist License, pursuant to California Business and Professions 

Code (Code) section 4311(a) and 4311(b), following Respondent's felony convictions and 

incarceration. 

JURISDICTION 

5. Accusation No. 2578 was filed before the Board, and is currently pending 

against Respondent. The Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly 

served on Respondent on July 8,2003. Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting 

the Accusation. A copy of Accusation No. 2578 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated herein 

by reference. 

6. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the suspension, 

expiration, surrender, or cancellation of a license shall not deprive the Board ofjurisdiction to 

proceed with a disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, 

restored, reissued or reinstated. 

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

7. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and 

understands the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 2578. Respondent also has carefully 

read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this StipUlated Surrender of 

License and Order. 

8. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the 

right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by 

counsel, at his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him; 

the right to present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of 

subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to 

reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the 

California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

9. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up 

each and every right set forth above. 
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CULP ABILITY 

10. Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in 

Accusation No. 2578, agrees that cause exists for discipline and hereby surrenders his 

Pharmacist License Number RPH 35355, for the Board's formal acceptance. 

11. Respondent understands that by signing this stipulation he enables the 

Board to issue an order accepting the surrender of his Pharmacist License Number RPH 35355 

without further process. 

RESERVATION 

12. The admissions made by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of 

this proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Board or other professional licensing 

agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or civil proceeding. 

CONTINGENCY 

13. This stipulation shall be subj ect to approval by the Board. Respondent 

understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board of Pharmacy 

may communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without 

notice to or participation by Respondent or his counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondent 

understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipUlation 

prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipUlation 

as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Surrender and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or 

effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, 

and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter. 

14. The parties understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated 

Surrender of License and Order, including facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force 

and effect as the originals. 

15. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties 

agree that the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the 

following Order: 

III 
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ORDER 


IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacist License Number RPH 35355, issued 

to Respondent Hoi-Chi Cheung is surrendered and accepted by the Board of Pharmacy. 

16. The surrender of Respondent's Pharmacist License Number RPH 35355 

and the acceptance of the surrendered license by the Board shall constitute the imposition of 

discipline against Respondent. This stipulation constitutes a record of the discipline and shall 

become a part of Respondent's license history with the Board. 

17. Respondent shall lose all rights and privileges as a licensed pharmacist in 

California as of the effective date of the Board's Decision and Order. 

18. Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Board both his wall and 

pocket license certificate on or before the effective date of the Decision and Order. 

19. Respondent fully understands and agrees that if he ever files an application 

for licensure or a petition for reinstatement in the State of California, the Board shall treat it as a 

petition for reinstatement. Respondent must comply with all the laws, regulations and 

procedures for reinstatement of a revoked license in effect at the time the petition is filed, and all 

of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No. 2578 shall be deemed to be true, 

correct, and admitted by Respondent when the Board determines whether to grant or deny the 

petition. 

20. Respondent shall pay the Board its costs of investigation and enforcement 

in the amount of $8,298.00 prior to issuance of a new or reinstated license. 
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I 
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/ 
1 
 ACCEPTANCE 

I have carefully read the above Stipulated Surrender ofLicense and Order and 

have fully discussed it with my attorney, Donald B. Brown. I understand the stipulation and the 

effect it will have on my Pharmacist License Number RPH 35355. renter into this Stipulated 

Surrender of License and Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound 

by the Decision and Order of the Board of Pharmacy. 

DATED: ___!~I_-~{~7_-~e~3~_______ 

rhave read and fully discussed with Respondent Hoi-Chi Cheung the terms and 


conditions and other matters contained in this Stipulated Surrender of License J.Ild Order. I 


approve its form and content. 


DATED: _N_O_V_4_200_3_ 
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ENDORSENIENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby respectfully 

submitted for consideration by the Board ofPhannacy of the Department of Consumer Affairs. 

DATED: 


BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State 0 f C alifomia 

Deputy Attorn y General 

Attorneys for Complainant 

DO] Docket Number/Matter ID: ()3583 I I O-LA2002AD 1866 

60016190.wpd 
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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

HOI-CHI CHEUNG 

Respondent. 

Pharmacist 'License No. RPH 35355 

Case No. 2578 

OAR No. L-2003070785 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby adopted by the 

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter. 

This Decision shall become effective on FebnJary 14, 2004 

It is so ORD ERED _..:.::..tl""""'anu~a....... 5'-1-,--,2....."OL.>J,O:,..;;,..4___
........ :r:y-:l:----'1....... 


BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMERAFFAJRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

BARRY G. THORPE, State Bar No. 126422 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-5845 
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

. DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

HOI-CHI CHEUNG 
651 N. Featherwood Drive 
Diamond Bar, CA 91765 

Phannacist License No. RPH 35355 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2578 

ACCUSATION 

Complainant alleges: 

PARTIES 

1. Patricia F. Harris (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her 

official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board ofPharmacy, Department of Consumer 

Affairs (Board). 

2. On or about June 11, 1980, the Board issued Phannacist License Number 

RPH 35355 to Hoi-Chi Cheung (Respondent). The Pharmacist License was in full force and 

effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on October 31, 2003, 

unless renewed. 
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JURISDICTION 


3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the 

below-mentioned statutes and regulations.} 

4. Section 4300 of the Code permits the Board to take disciplinary action to 

suspend or revoke a license issued by the Board. 

5. Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 

unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or 

issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the 

following: 

(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, 

deceit, or corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or 

otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not. 

(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state or of the United States 

regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs. 

(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 

(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled 

substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or 

dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the 

record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. 

The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order 

1. All statutory references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless 
otherwise indicated. 
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to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances' 

or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty 

or a conviction following a plea ofnolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the 

meaning o~ this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or 

the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is 

made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 

1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a 

plea ofnot guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, 

or indictment. 

" 

6. Section 4051 of the Code states, in pertinent part that: 

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter [Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 

4000 of the Business and Professions Code)], it is unlawful for any person to manufacture, 

compound, furnish, sell, or dispense any dangerous drug or dangerous device, or to dispense or 

compound any prescription pursuant to Section 4040 of a prescriber unless he or she is a 

pharmacist under this chapter." 

7. Section 4059 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

"(a) A person may not furnish any dangerous drug, except upon the prescription of 

a physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, or veterinarian. A person may not furnish any 

dangerous device, except upon the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, or 

veterinarian." 

8. Section 490 provides that the Board may suspend or revoke a license when 

it finds that the licensee has been convicted of a crime, if the crime is subst~tially related to the 

qualifications, functions, or duties of that license. 

9. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the suspension, 

expiration, surrender, or cancellation of a license shall not deprive the Board ofjurisdiction to 
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proceed with a'disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, 

restored, reissued or reinstated. 

10. Title 16, California Code of Regulations section 1770 provides that for 

purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a license, a crime or act shall be considered 

substantially related to the qualific~tions, functions or duties of a licensee if to a substantial 

degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a licensee to perform the functions 

authorized by his license in a manner consistent with public health, safety, or welfare. 

It. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in'pertinent part, that the Board may 

request the administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or 

violations of the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

and enforcement of the case. 

12. DANGEROUS DRUGS 

a. "Viagra," a brand name for sildenafil citrate, for the treatment of erectile 

dysfunction, is categorized as a dangerous dnlg pursuant to section 4022 of the Code. 

b. "Diflucan," a brand name for fluconazole, an anti-fungal agent, is 

categorized as a dangerous drug pursuant to section 4022 of the Code. 

c. "Xenical," a brand name for orlistat, for the treatment of obesity, is 

categorized as a dangerous drug pursuant to section 4022 of the Code. 

d. "Zithromax," a brand name for azithromycin, an antibiotic, is categorized 

as a dangerous drug pursuant to section 4022 of the Code. 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Commission of Act Involving ivloral Turpitude, Dishonesty or Fraud) 


13. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 4300 and 

4301(1) of the Code in that Respondent took dangerous drugs from the his employer, Kaiser 

Foundation Hospital PharmacyNo. 197; a.k.a. Link Pharmacy (Link Pharmacy). The 

circumstances are as follows: 

In or about February of2002, an internal audit by the Kaiser Pharmacy Audit and 

Compliance Team revealed that between January 1, 2000, and January 1, 2002, there was an 
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unexplained variance of approximately 71,711 tablets ofViagra, with a wholesale value in excess 

of$500,000.00, unaccounted for at the Link Pharmacy. Respondent :was the Link Pharmacy 

manager from January 2000 to February 2002, and controlled the ordering and transfer ofViagra 

from the narcotic safe to the Viagra dispense bin. On or about February 20, 2002, Respondent 

. was questioned by Kaiser investigators, and admitted to ste~ling about 10 bottles ofViagra in 

December 1999, and approximately 60 bottles ofViagra per month from January 2000 to 

February 20, 2002. Respondent stated he sold the Viagra for $165.00 a bottle, to an individual he 

met at the racetrack, known to him as "Phillip Ho." Respondent also admitted to having stolen 2 

bottles ofXenicaI, 2 bottles ofDiflucan and one bottle of Zithromax, during the morning hours 

of February 20, 2002. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(Possess, Furnish Dangerous Drugs Without a Prescription) 


14. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 4300 and 

4301 0), in conjunction with sections 4051 and 4059 of the Code, in that Respondent possessed, 

furnished, sold or dispensed dangerous drugs to others without a prescription, as more fully set 

forth in paragraph 13, above. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Conviction of Substantially Related Crimes) 

15. Respondent has subjected his license to discipline pursuant to section 490, 

in conjunction with Title 16, California Code ofRegulations section 1770, by reason ofhis 

conviction of crimes which are substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of 

the profession for which the license was issued, as follows: 

On February 4, 2003, Respondent was convicted by his plea of guilty, ofviolating 

Penal Code section 487 [felony grand theft] and of two violations of Penal Code section 508 

[felony embezzlement by an agent], in the County of San Bernardino Superior Court, Case No. 

FVA016893. 

The circumstances of the crimes are described in paragraph 13, above. 
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FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct - Convictions) 

16. Respondent has subjected his license to discipline pursuant to section 4300 

for unprofessional conduct as defined in section 4301(1), by reason of his convictions, as 

described in paragraphs 1.3 and 15 above, of crimes which are substantially relatt;d to the 

qualifications, functions, and duties of a pharmacist licensee. 

The circumstances of the crimes are described in paragraph 13, above. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: 

A. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 35355, issued 

to Hoi-Chi Cheung; 

B. Ordering Hoi-Chi Cheung to pay the Board ofPhannacy the reasonable 

costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions 

Code section 125.3; 

C. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: &/;)3 j03 
I • 

PATRlCIAF. HARRIS 
Executive Officer 
Board of Pharmacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs . 
State of California 
Complainant 

03583110-LA2002ADS1866 

cak:bgt 

60002451.wpd 
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